### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

#### **SOPPs COMMITTEE**

Westin Jekyll Island Jekyll Island, Georgia

#### March 8, 2018

#### SUMMARY MINUTES

#### **Committee Members**

Chris Conklin, Chair Anna Beckwith Dr. Roy Crabtree Jessica McCawley

#### **Council Members**

Charlie Phillips Robert Beal Zack Bowen Ben Hartig

#### **Council Staff**

Gregg Waugh Dr. Brian Cheuvront Kimberly Cole Mike Collins John Hadley Roger Pugliese Amber Von Harten

#### **Observers & Participants**

LCDR Trish Bennett Shep Grimes Dr. Erik Williams Tony DiLernia Rick DeVictor

Other observers & participants attached.

Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair Chester Brewer Dr. Michelle Duval

Mark Brown Mel Bell Tim Griner

John Carmichael Myra Brouwer Dr. Chip Collier Dr. Mike Errigo Kim Iverson Cameron Rhodes Christina Wiegand

Monica Smit-Brunello Dr. Jack McGovern Leann Bosarge Erika Burges Rob O'Reilly The SOPPs Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened at the Westin Jekyll Island, Jekyll Island, Georgia, Thursday afternoon, March 8, 2018, and was called to order by Chairman Chris Conklin.

MR. CONKLIN: I will call the SOPPs Committee to order. Our first item of business is Approval of the Agenda. The committee members are Chris Conklin, Anna Beckwith, Roy Crabtree, Jessica McCawley, Doug Haymans, Chester Brewer, and Michelle Duval. Our first item of business now is Approval of the Agenda. Does anybody have any changes or modifications to the agenda? Seeing none, the agenda stands approved.

Our next order of business is Approval of the Minutes from the December 2017 meeting in North Carolina. Is there any additions or changes to the minutes? Seeing none, the minutes stand approved. Our next item is to Review Policies for Inclusion in the SOPPs and Handbook, and Gregg is going to walk us through that. That's Attachments 1 through 4 in your briefing book, and so I'm going to turn it over to Gregg.

MR. WAUGH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. What we'll do is the main item that we're going to be dealing with is the Handbook. Again, the SOPPs is under review in the Regional Office, and that tracks the legal mandates of Magnuson, and certainly, if there are any changes that we need to make to that, we can talk about that, but we haven't really delved into that. We have focused on the Handbook. Your direction, you gave us some changes, approved some changes, at the last meeting, and we have made those changes, and we circulated it back to the SOPPs Committee and got some additional changes, and that is what you have as Attachment 2, and that is the document we'll be working from. After that was sent out, we did have a little more internal staff review, and I've got a few minor editorial changes that I will point out as we go through.

If you will, turn to that Attachment 2, and we'll walk through the document. We tried to put comment boxes by items that were major changes, to call your attention to it. In the future, we can include a track changes, so that people see all the changes, but we thought, to aid moving through the document, it would be a lot easier to work from a semi-cleaned-up document, and we'll stop at each place there is a comment box and make sure you all are comfortable with that wording. If you have additional changes, we can make them here. The intent is we will make any modifications that you all give us here today and clean up the document, and then you will have another shot at it in June as well. Any questions so far? Okay.

If we start through, the first item is on page 1 of that document, where we're talking about the officers and terms of office. There was some older language in here, and we had a suggestion to update it and reflect that the new terms of council members begins on August 11, and so we clarified that the elections are to be held at the first meeting of the council after August 11, and we always do our elections at our September meeting.

We reflect in here that the procedure that the South Atlantic Council operates under is generally the Chair and Vice Chair serve for two years and then the Vice Chair moves up to the Chair, and then we elect a new Vice Chair, and so we're just reflecting that, and we want to see if there is any suggested changes to that wording or if you all are okay with that wording. Everybody is okay with that?

Then we'll go on to the bottom of the next page, page 2, and this carries over to the top of -- The page numbers are the actual page numbers in the document that I am talking about, and we clarified what "detailed government employees" means. In some cases, we can have a position filled by a detailed government employee, and that is someone on loan from either the state or federal government, and, once that term of work ends, then they would go back to their original job. Any questions on that one?

Next, over on page 4, Work Schedule, Item D, we edited this section to clean up and clarify the language. Are there any questions on that section? Okay. Next, on page 5, Salary Increases and Awards, the way this was worded before, it was inconsistent with Number 5 that talks about how cash awards are given, and so we clarified this. In Item 1, we're talking about the overall policy, and it says cash awards may be given at any time deemed appropriate by the Executive Director within budget constraints after consultation with the Council Chair.

You all set the budget at the start of the year, and then it's up to the Executive Director, after consulting with the Council Chair, to determine when those cash awards are given. Any questions here? In general, these would be very minor cash awards that we would give during the year. We do annual performance reviews in December, and that's when we would be determining cash awards, for the most part.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am not sure why this sentence was added, because there is a separate section, a little further down, called Cash Awards, and the same information seems to be in there.

MR. WAUGH: The thought was that, in Item 1, we're talking about the overall policy. Then you get into a little more specifics in the other items, but it doesn't have to be in both places.

MR. HAYMANS: Gregg, I don't see the reason or the need to give a cash award at any time. It seems to me that a cash award or a bonus would be only given at annual review, and I don't understand the reasoning for just any time and providing that. Can you help me?

MR. WAUGH: What we've done is if someone, during the year, comes up with a good way to save the council money, that may be something we want to give them a small cash award to recognize that extra effort.

MR. HAYMANS: Couldn't that be done at one time of year, at the annual performance review?

MR. WAUGH: It certainly could. There may be instances where you want to reward the employee closer to when the event occurs is the thought process. The next item is under Employee Benefits on page 6.

DR. DUVAL: Gregg, can you scroll back up to the Performance Review section on page 5? The last sentence in there, it says, in certain limited circumstances, a merit increase during the course of the year, for example additional responsibilities to job description, and it just seems like there is some words missing there that might need to be cleaned up. It doesn't appear to be a complete sentence, I guess is what I'm saying. Like a merit increase during the course of the year may be provided, for example if there are additional responsibilities added to the job description.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Also, could merit increase be a sub-section by itself, like we have cash awards as a sub-section? I am trying to track more of what we were talking about in Personnel, about how there is three different possible types of add-ons here, and to have a breakout section for each one of those.

MR. WAUGH: Yes, we can do that.

MR. CONKLIN: Any more discussion? Then we'll move on.

MR. WAUGH: Okay. On page 6, Employee Benefits, there was a question about what full-time employee means, and so we've added thirty-plus hours per week, to clarify eligible or qualifying employees.

MR. PHILLIPS: Mr. Chairman, I am not on your committee, but, Gregg, is that for an average length of time, because you may have some people that don't get thirty hours one week, but they get thirty-five for the next four weeks, and is that just average, or is that just planned hourly?

MR. WAUGH: This is in the case of -- Well, our employees work forty hours a week. You maybe would have special circumstances where an individual, for health reasons or some other, would work under forty hours a week, and so this is actually indicating that they work at least thirty hours each week.

MR. PHILLIPS: Wouldn't most of the employees, except for maybe a possibly new employee, have sick leave and comp leave and stuff like that that would move them up toward their forty hours a week?

MR. WAUGH: Yes, but we may, in some instances, want to retain an employee at a lower pay, and they would only work thirty hours a week, and that's what this is trying to get to, and, Mike, feel free to come up and offer any additional clarification, as necessary.

MR. COLLINS: We had a long-term employee that had major back surgery and was limited by her doctor not to work more than thirty hours a week, and so this made her eligible for the benefits, but at a reduced level of pay, as Gregg said, and it was a long-term thing. It was six months of that limitation.

MR. WAUGH: Moving on to Post-Retirement Health Insurance, this is a benefit that the council added to provide some -- Well, federal employees can remain within their group health insurance policy, and they pay the premiums, and that's not something we can offer to council employees. All the councils worked on a way to try and address this, and they couldn't, and so what the council did was provide this benefit whereby, if you serve ten years of continuous service and you retire from the council after age-sixty-five, then the council will pay 85 percent of a retiree's cost for Medicare B, F, and D or other federal government insurance, such as Tricare.

We worked with our -- Like everybody else, medical care is an increasing cost, and we have shopped around. One year, we switched policies twice with a company, and we're working with our current insurance company, and, by having employees that meet the Medicare requirement, if we shift them out of our group policy, that lowers the overall age and medical costs of remaining pool of employees. This helps control the increase in cost each year for that pool of employees,

and so that savings is quite significant to the council, and that savings banks and sort of self-funds a portion of this benefit after people retire.

MS. BECKWITH: Amongst the discussions that I think you guys are going to have later in Personnel and looking at different benefits, one thing we might consider as a council is, those people that have come in under this benefit, they should be able to retain it, but I think the council should consider moving new hires over to something more similar to the Gulf plan for the post-retirement health insurance, but that's just a thought.

DR. DUVAL: Gregg, I just had a question. The comment balloon kind of covers up what the remaining text is under the next item of Life Insurance. Can you read that? I can't see all of what the text is under Life Insurance, and I was just curious if you could clarify that.

MR. WAUGH: I will have to pull that up from our previous version, but I will get that wording for you. Maybe, while we're discussing this, Mike could pull up our previous version of the handbook and then we can get you that wording.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I actually think I have it. I have an old hard copy of that, and it says, under Life Insurance, that fully-paid term life coverage is provided for eligible employees. The amount of insurance is prescribed by the terms of the contract with the insurance company. The contract contains the details of insurance levels and coverage.

MR. WAUGH: Thanks, Monica, and so the two words that are covered up are "the".

DR. DUVAL: Awesome. Thank you.

MR. WAUGH: The next item is on page 7, and it's the Retirement Plan. We are suggesting --This wasn't quite clear, the wording that's in there now, as to a retirement plan separate from our 401K, and so we're suggesting this new wording. The council sponsors a 401k retirement plan in which employees are eligible to participate. Employees may make pre-tax or after-tax, which are Roth, contributions to the plan, and the council matches employee contributions up to 4 percent of the employee's annual salary subject to funding availability. This amount can change depending on funding. Pre-tax contributions and all council match contributions are taxed upon withdrawal. If an employee chooses the Roth option, taxes are paid upfront through regular payroll tax deductions. Additionally, the council makes a safe harbor contribution in the amount of 3 percent of the employee's annual pay. This contribution is non-discretionary, non-matching, and 100 percent vested. Lastly, the council makes a contribution of 7 percent of eligible compensation to a fixed pension fund. After 5 years of service, an employee will be 100 percent vested.

What that means is the council contributes 10 percent, a portion of which you have to meet this vesting requirement for five years. The council will match an additional 4 percent if the employee contributes that, and that's dependent on funding. What the council did in December is we approved a 10 percent reduction to that, and so it's 3.6 percent is what the council is matching, and a difference between federal and state and council employees is we don't get a pension, even though the wording here says a fixed pension plan. What we have is basically it all goes into a 401K, and, when you leave the council, you get whatever is in that 401K. There is no further obligation from the council, and there is no sort of pension, and so that's the difference. That is pretty consistent across all eight councils.

The other item is, at retirement time, a one-time allowance is authorized for financial planning not to exceed \$2,000 to assist in an employee's transition to retirement, in terms of restructuring the distribution of retirement accounts, and so we have a group that provides advice to the council staff while you're employed there.

The thought process here is this helps employees that need it and that choose to use it, and not all have, but making that transition from when you're working to then setting up the structure of how your retirement is going to be structured and paid out is quite a big step, and, in some instances, this is a very important benefit to employees to assist them in structuring that. There are similar training and services available, I know, at the federal level, and I'm not sure at the state level, to provide this, and not all of our employees that are retiring make use of this, but I think it's a very important assist to those that need it.

MR. BELL: For us, that's normally our HR folks that set that up, and, once a year, we have a retirement class, and they bring in outside folks, and you can get advice and stuff, and they explain things, and you consider your options. That would be the equivalent, I guess.

MR. PHILLIPS: Again, I am not on your committee. I am guessing -- You say you've got a group or somebody that does this ongoing, up until they are retired?

MR. COLLINS: That's correct.

MR. PHILLIPS: A follow-up. So, it's not part of our human resources group and it's an outside group that we're paying to come in and do this advice? I'm a little unclear on how this is working.

MR. WAUGH: I will let Mike give a little more details on how that's done.

MR. COLLINS: We have an outside agreement with a company called Baxter, and they provide general advice on the retirement plans and the health side of things, and so they're the ones that negotiated where we would put our 401K money with Great-West, which is now Empower, which most of the states have their pension plans with that same company. They negotiated down the fees as low as they could possibly do it based upon the amount of money that's in the 401K plan, and so it's just general advice.

Specific advice to a retiree is an added service, and so they also monitor or administer the FSA plan, the kind of cafeteria plan, and so, the people that defer money for childcare, they monitor that type of thing, and it's a seventy-five-dollar fee per month to do all of that, but the specialized part, upon retirement, is not covered by that.

MR. WAUGH: The next item is on page 9, Compensatory Leave. There was a question raised about the statement about travel on a weekend or holiday which substantially disrupts the employee's schedule will be counted as eight hours, and it is a little open-ended. We feel this provides some limited flexibility for a supervisor to determine how much comp time is allowed, to that eight-hour maximum, for a day.

Then the Family and Medical Leave Act, we had wording in here regarding maternity leave that was removed and replaced with the language used by the Gulf Council to track the Family and

Medical Leave Act. This was some older language that we had, and so what we have done is replace it with all the language from the Gulf, and we've got a question here of this one paragraph that the Gulf has that is not required by the Family and Medical Leave Act and a question of whether this should be retained.

It says that the council may choose not to return highly-compensated employees, the highest 10 percent of employees at a worksite or within seventy-five miles of that workplace, to their former or equivalent positions following a leave if restoration of employment will cause substantial economic injury to the council. If you invoke your rights under the FMLA, the council will notify you if you are determined to be a highly-compensated employee. We are just not sure that we need to have that in there. It's not required by the FMLA, and we wanted to have you all's discussion and guidance.

DR. DUVAL: I guess a couple of things. I would think you would want to notify an employee if they are considered to be a highly-compensated employee before anyone -- When they're being hired on, as opposed to when they might decide to invoke their rights under FMLA. It seems to me like you would want to be just more upfront about that as part of an employee's new orientation, and so that's just a suggestion, if this stays in.

I don't know if the council has ever, in the past, encountered a situation where there was something like this, where someone was out on FMLA and returned to the worksite after an extended absence and something like this was done. I think, if there was going to be any consideration of something like this, then you would probably want to have this clause in here, to protect yourselves, and I don't know. I mean, I would look for input from other members of the committee as well, and those are just two suggestions that I would have. I think you probably would want to notify an employee upfront during their orientation if they are a highly compensated person under the FMLA and then other input as to whether or not this should stay in.

MR. CONKLIN: To me, this opens up kind of like a slippery slope. I would recommend, personally, to remove it from the document.

MR. PHILLIPS: Since it seems like it's almost never used, or has never been used, does it matter if you leave it in? If you don't use it, but there may be some odd -- Something that happens five years down the road, unforeseen stuff, and not that we ever get anything unforeseen, but I think my gut feeling is that -- Again, I'm not on the committee, but, if it doesn't hurt, but we may need it, or the council, at some future point in time, may need it, it's probably better to leave it in.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Just an observation. I don't know why the Gulf Council put this in there. There may have been a really good reason they put it in there, and you may want to ask them why they put it in, because sometimes you don't always know why certain scenarios that could come up, but this is not legal advice, because I am not familiar with all the ins and outs of the FMLA, but it's just a suggestion that you may want to just talk with them first.

MR. COLLINS: I am guessing that they put this in for a specific incident that occurred in the past. We have some kind of strange things in there dealing with council members flying their personal planes to a meeting and that type of thing, which happened fifteen years ago or something, and it just was -- It necessitated having it added to the Handbook, and so I think something happened down there that they needed to put this in.

MS. BOSARGE: Feel free to reach out to council staff and maybe ask them about that, because I really, on the fly, have not a clue.

MR. WAUGH: We can contact them and get the details for you, if you want, and bring it back in June. Then we can also look at notifying people at the start of employment that they are a highly-compensated person under this provision. We will bring that back.

MR. CONKLIN: Okay. We will move on.

MR. WAUGH: The next item we have is over on page 18, but I don't want to skip anything if anyone has a question before page 18, under Executive Finance Committee. We are clarifying here to indicate that the Executive Finance Committee approves the funding of any contracts. The Executive Finance Committee would also approve staff pursuing any grants for which the council is eligible.

That last sentence, in the past, in the long past, we did involve the Executive Finance Committee in looking at the staff retirement program. We haven't done that for many, many years. Mike and I now, the Administrative Officer and the Executive Director, are charged with the fiduciary responsibility related to the pension plan, and I doubt you all would want to take on that responsibility, and so we're recommending that that last sentence be deleted, and then we clarified that, through the budget process, the committee approves the funding of all contracts entered into by the council.

MR. CONKLIN: You recommend that we remove this, and does anybody have any heartburn with that? All right, and so we'll move on.

MR. WAUGH: When this was done, we didn't have some of the committees we have now, and so the suggestion was to lay out those committees, and so we've added them, and a couple of changes that we're suggesting be made, that you don't have, start with the Advisory Panel. Before, we had both the Advisory Panel and the SSC Selection Committees, both of those committees under one. What our recommendation is, it's let's separate them, and so we're pulling the information about the SSC Selection Committee and putting it down under Item I for the Scientific and Statistical Selection Committee.

For a number of these committees here, we use this old terminology of "steering committees", and we just call them committees now, and so we're suggesting that we remove "steering". In this section, the changes that we're suggesting is to drop the word "steering" and then to move the wording that appears now under E that addresses the SSC Selection Committee and to move that down to replace the language that is under I.

Next is over on page 22, Per Diem Guidance. The language was changed from "we" to "authorized travelers", just cleaning up the language there. The next page is on page 25.

MR. CONKLIN: Gregg, Jessica has a question.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Back on page 23, under Foreign Travel, there is a red dot in the middle of that paragraph. It's after the word "approval", in the next-to-last line.

MR. WAUGH: Got it. We will fix that.

MR. CONKLIN: Excellent observation. Thank you.

MR. WAUGH: Then over to page 25. Just to clarify that an administrative fee may be charged for research and copying records in response to a FOIA. The way this was worded before, it only applied to paper copies, and that tells you how long ago this was done. Now we've gone electronic, and we respond to our FOIAs, and Mike has a system set up that we track this after each meeting, and so it's actually really easy for us to provide FOIA request information to the Region and NOAA GC.

On page 27, this is one item that you asked us to work with NOAA GC on, and we're still in the process of trying to get some clarification on that. This has to do with IPTs and how state employees, state representatives, can participate on IPTs, and I don't know if Monica has anything to update us on at this meeting.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I don't have an update, but we are working on it, and we're talking with attorneys in other regions too, to see how they handle it with their councils, but, yes, we're looking into it, and so we should have an answer by June.

MR. WAUGH: On page 29, addressing Property Management, this is clarifying that the Administrative Officer is responsible for property management. Then, on page 34, within the appendix for the SSC, this is suggested language to clarify how they vote or when they vote. Our suggestion is to put in language that reads: The SSC generally reaches decisions by consensus but may also vote as needed and as determined by the SSC Chair. We just wanted you all's okay to put that in there. Okay.

On page 35, Public Comment, we're just adding the use of the council's online comment form, and so both the SSC, and it's the same language for the AP, we now make use of the council comment form, and we want to do that same thing in conjunction with SSC and AP meetings.

DR. DUVAL: I will just note that there's a couple of places here where "Council Chair" probably needs to be replaced with "SSC Chair" under those last two paragraphs under Verbal Comment. It says those wishing to comment should indicate such in the manner requested by the Council Chair, and so just replace it with "SSC Chair", and the same in the next paragraph.

MR. WAUGH: Got it. Thank you. On page 37, we just changed the order of this material to pull up the discussion of an inactive advisory panel, to get that farther up into the discussion. Then, under Appointment and Replacement of Members, change from "nominee" to "applicant". Then, on page 40, again, that change for public comment, and we've got the same issue there to fix with "Council Chair" and change that to "AP Chair". Those are all the changes we have suggested for you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Just to reiterate, we talked about some additional changes in the Personnel Committee, and I think that we want to get those in after the next committee meeting, and then the request, during that committee, to go through and look for additional policies that you might have that you might want to add to the handbook.

MR. WAUGH: Okay. We will get anything else that we have, any existing policies, and we will add them in a draft. I think, since the Gulf has so much more experience with their Handbook, we will take a look at theirs and see if there is anything there that we're missing that perhaps we should add, and we would bring that to you in June, in track changes, so you can see it. We're always willing to learn from other councils. That is everything on the Handbook for right now, and I don't know if anybody has any input at this stage for the SOPPs.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I didn't get a chance to review the SOPPs. I am just hoping that I can review it before the next council meeting. I spent my time on the Handbook, and so I just wanted to -- It's not that I don't have edits, but I just didn't have time to get to it.

MR. CONKLIN: A fine job you've done. Thank you.

MR. WAUGH: In terms of the SOPPs, that version that we have is currently under review in the Region, and so I don't know if there would be any changes from the Region. We don't anticipate any, but, again, the idea with the SOPPs is to have sort of the bare minimum legal requirements that match up with the MSA, and then all the details are in the Handbook.

MR. PHILLIPS: Just to clarify, if I remember correctly, once we send the SOPPs to the Region, we act as if they were passed, even though it may be on the bottom of a pile on somebody's desk, whom I won't name.

MR. WAUGH: That is correct. We have been operating under those SOPPs and the Handbook, and we make changes to -- We control, if you will, the Handbook, and so we can make more changes to that, and we're awaiting the potential for MSA reauthorization, and, if we get changes there, then there may be some items that we do need to address in the SOPPs.

MR. CONKLIN: All right. Is there any more business to come before the SOPPs Committee? I will yield back five minutes, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned on March 8, 2018.)

Certified By:

Date:

Transcribed By: Amanda Thomas March 21, 2018

# SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 2017 COMMITTEES continued

#### SNAPPER GROUPER

Michelle Duval, Chair Jessica McCawley, Vice Chair Anna Beckwith Mel Bell Zack Bowen Chester Brewer Mark Brown Chris Conklin Roy Crabtree **Tim Griner** Ben Hartig **Doug Haymans** LCDR Jeremy Montes **Charlie Phillips** Mid-Atlantic Liaison: Tony DiLernia & Dewey Hemilright Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

#### SOPPs

Chris Conklin, Chair Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair Anna Beckwith Chester Brewer Roy Crabtree Michelle Duval Uessica McCawley Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

#### SPINY LOBSTER

Jessica McCawley, Chair Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair Chester Brewer Chris Conklin Roy Crabtree LCDR Jeremy Montes Staff contact: Christina Wiegand

# SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

#### **GOUNCIL CHAIR**

Charlie Phillips Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms 1418 Sapelo Ave N.E. Townsend, GA 31331 (912)832-4423 <u>Ga\_capt@yahoo.com</u>

#### VICE-CHAIR

Mark Brown 3642 Pandora Drive Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466 (843)881-9735 (ph.); (843)881-4446 (f) <u>Capt.markbrown101@gmail.com</u>

Robert E. Beal Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1050 N. Highland St. Suite 200 A-N Arlington, VA 20001 (703)842-0740 (ph); (703)842-0741 (f) rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith 1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 252/671-3474 (ph) <u>AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com</u>

#### Mel Bell

S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 217 Ft. Johnson Road Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9007 (ph); 843/953-9159 (fax) bellm@dnr.sc.gov

## Zack Bowen

P.O. Box 30825 Savannah, GA 31410 (912)398-3733 (ph) zackbowensafmc@gmail.com W. Chester Brewer 250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 (561)655-4777 (ph) wcbsafmc@gmail.com

Chris Conklin P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 (843)543-3833 conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 (727)824-5301 (ph); (727)824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Dr. Michelle Duval NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell Street (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 (252)808-8011 (ph); (252)726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

Tim Griner 4446 Woodlark Lane Charlotte, NC 28211 (980)722-0918 (ph) timgrinersafmc@gmail.com

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 (772)546-1541 (ph) <u>mackattackben@att.net</u>

(continued)

6

# SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUCNIL 2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 (912)264-7218 (ph); (912)262-2318 (f) haymanssafmc@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator P.O. Box 33683 Raleigh, NC 27695-7617 (110 Brooks Ave 237 David Clark Laboratories, NCSU Campus Raleigh, NC 27695-7617) (919)515-5019 (ph); (919)515-4415 (f) Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E. Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 (850)487-0554 (ph); (850)487-4847 (f) Jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com LCDR Jeremy Montes U.S. Coast Guard 909 SE 1<sup>st</sup> Ave. Miami, FL 33131 305/415-6788(ph); 305/710-4569(c) Jeremy.J.Montes@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer Office of Marine Conservation OES/OMC 2201 C Street, N.W. Department of State, Room 5806 Washington, DC 20520 202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f) <u>Warner-KramerDM@state.gov</u>

LCDR Trish Bennett Minica Smit-Brunello Shep Grimes Dr. Jack McGovern Dr. Erik Williams Leann Bosarge Tony Dilernia Erika Burgess Rick Devictor Rob O'Reily

# SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director Gregg T. Waugh Gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Deputy Directory-Science & Statistics John Carmichael John.carmichael@safmc.net

Deputy Director-Management Dr. Brian Cheuvront Brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist Myra Brouwer <u>Myra.brouwer@safmc.net</u>

Admin. Secretary/ Travel Coordinator Cindy Chaya <u>Cindy.chaya@safmc.net</u>

Purchasing & Grants Kimberly Cole <u>Kimberly.cole@safmc.net</u>

Fishery Scientist Dr. Chip Collier Chip.collier@safmc.net

Administrative Officer /Mike Collins <u>Mike.collins@safmc.net</u>

Outreach Specialist Kelsey Dick Kelsey.dick@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist Dr. Mike Errigo Mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fishery Economist John Hadley John.hadley@safmc.net Outreach Specialist Kathleen Howington Kathleen.howington@safmc.net

Public Information Officer Kim Iverson Kim.iverson@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist Roger Pugliese <u>Roger pugliese@safmc.net</u>

Outreach Specialist Cameron Rhodes <u>Cameron.rhodes@safmc.net</u>

Financial Secretary Suzanna Thomas Suzanna.thomas@safmc.net

Citizen Science Program Manager Amber Von Harten <u>Amber.vonharten@safmc.net</u>

Fishery Social Scientist Christina Wiegand <u>Christina.wiegand@safmc.net</u>

SEDAR Coordinators Dr. Julie Neer- Julie.neer@safmc.net Julia Byrd- Julia.byrd@safmc.net

11 Back to top

# March council Mtg 2018 Day 4 3/8/18

Last Name	First Name	Email Address			
Bailey	Adam	adam.bailey@noaa.gov			
Batsavage	Chris	chris.batsavage@ncdenr.gov			
Beaty	Julia	jbeaty@mafmc.org			
Bennett	Patricia	patricia.m.bennett@uscg.mil			
Bianchi	Alan	Alan.Bianchi@ncdenr.gov			
Blow	Wes	wesamy2000@cox.net			
Bubley	Wally	bubleyw@dnr.sc.gov			
Byrd	Julia	julia.byrd@safmc.net			
Clarke	Lora	Iclarke@pewtrusts.org			
Conklin	Chris	conklincc@gmail.com			
Cox	Jack	dayboat1965@gmail.com			
Cunningham	Leda	lcunningham@pewtrusts.org			
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov			
Dick	Kelsey	kelsey.dick@safmc.net			
Dukes	Amy	DukesA@dnr.sc.gov			
Exley	Gary	river92@bellsouth.net			
Fitzpatrick	Eric	Eric.fitzpatrick@noaa.gov			
Foss	Kristin	kristin.foss@myfwc.com			
Foster	Dean	dfoster@pewtrusts.org			
Franco	Dawn	dawn.franco@dnr.ga.gov			
Geer	Pat	pat.geer@dnr.ga.gov			
Geer	P	pat.geer@dbr.ga.gov			
Gerhart	Susan	susan.gerhart@noaa.gov			
Godwin	Joelle	joelle.godwin@noaa.gov			
Gorham	Bill	Getbowedup40@gmail.com			
Hadley	John	john.hadley@samfc.net			
Hart	Hannah	hannah.hart@myfwc.com			
Hartig	Ben	mackattackben@att.net			
Helies	Frank	frank.helies@noaa.gov			
Howington	Kathleen	kathleen.howington@safmc.net			
Iverson	Kim	kim.iverson@safmc.net			
Jiorle	Ryan	ryan.jiorle@mrc.virginia.gov			
Laks	Ira	captainira@att.net			
Larkin	Michael	Michael.Larkin@noaa.gov			
Lupton	Dee	dee.lupton@ncdenr.gov			
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov			
Merrifield	Jeanna	jeannam@wildoceanmarket.com			
Neer	Julie	julie.neer@safmc.net			
PUGLIESE	ROGER	ROGER.PUGLIESE@SAFMC.NET			
Pulver	Jeff	Jeff.Pulver@noaa.gov			
Raine	Karen	karen.raine@noaa.gov			

Ralston Kellie		kralston@asafishing.org			
Records	David	david.records@noaa.gov			
Revere	Justin	hatterasfishingadventure@gmail.com			
Rhodes	Ray	rhodesr@cofc.edu			
Schnettler	Erin	erin.schnettler@noaa.gov			
Sedberry	George	george.sedberry@gmail.com			
Seward	McLean	mclean.seward@ncdenr.gov			
Shipley	Krista	krista.shipley@myfwc.com			
Simmons	Carrie	carrie.simmons@gulfcouncil.org			
Smart	Tracey	smartt@dnr.sc.gov			
Stephen	Jessica	jessica.stephen@noaa.gov			
Takade-Heumacher	Helen	htakade@edf.org			
Travis	Michael	mike.travis@noaa.gov			
bowen	zack	fishzack@comcast.net			
brennan	ken	kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov			
brewer	chester	wcbsafmc@gmail.com			
brouwer	myra	myra.brouwer@safmc.net			
cimino	joe	joe.cimino@mrc.virginia.gov			
colby	barrett	bcolby3@cfl.rr.com			
knowlton	kathy	kathy.knowlton@dnr.ga.gov			
o reilly	Robert	rob.oreilly@mrc.virginia.gov			
poland	steve	stephen.j.poland@gmail.com			
rindone	ryan	ryan.rindone@gulfcouncil.org			
sandorf	scott	scott.sandorf@noaa.gov			
thomas	suz	suzanna.thomas@safmc.net			
vara	mary	mary.vara@noaa.gov			
Chaya	Cindy	candrchaya@hotmail.com			
FARMER	NICHOLAS	nick.farmer@noaa.gov			
Hudson	Rusty	DSF2009@aol.com			
Meinhold	Timothy	timmeinhold4020@gmail.com			
Parrish	Joshua	jeparrish@liberty.edu			
Reynolds	Reggie	reggiereyonlds@protonmail.com			
conklin	chris	conklinsafmc@gmail.com			
dilernia	tony	tony@rocketcharters.com			

							If Other, please provide more	
Name	Last						information:	
Robert	Crimian					NGO		
Robert	Lorenz	Private Recreational Angler						
Robert	Lorenz	Private Recreational Angler						
Dean	Foster					NGO		
Leda	Cunningha m					NGO		
Susan	Shipman							
Lora	Clarke					NGO		
Amy	Dukes						SCDNR	
Bill	Weeks		Charter/H eadboat/F or-Hire				member Cobia sub committee advisory board	

March Council Mtg 2018 - Day 4 - 3/8/18